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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION or ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9474 I.S00.852.334S Ext 9474

Fax: 603.271.4230 TDD Access: 1.S00.73S.2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 1,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend an existing contract with Families in Transition (formerly known as
FIT/NHNH, Inc.), (VC#157730), Manchester. NH. for the ongoing provision of permanent housing
arid supportive services to individuals who are experiencing homelessness, by increasing the
price limitation by $117,580 from $324,220 to $441,800 and by extending the completion date
from October 31. 2022 to October 31. 2023, effective November 1. 2022, or upon Governor and
Council approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on August 14, 2019 (Item
#9), amended on October 21. 2020 (Item #13), and as most recently amended on August 18
2021 (Item #26).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42308115 $69,841 $0 $69,841

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42308115 $106,382 $0 $106,382

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42308118 $35,730 $0 $35,730

2022 074-500589
Grants for Public Asst

and Relief
42308118 $74,845 $0 $74,845

2023 074-500589
Grants for Public Asst

and Relief
TBD $37,422 $78,387 $115,809

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public Asst

and Relief
TBD $0 $39,193 $39,193

Totol $324,220 $117,580 $441,800

The Dtpartmtnt of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cilisens to achieve health and independence.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Permanent Supportive Housing
program that delivers rental assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals who
are experiencing homelessness. The Department is seeking to extend the contract beyond the
completion date and available contract renewal options in response to a directive from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Notice of Funding
Opportunity, to provide an additional one (1) year of funding to the Contractor for this specific
Continuum of Care grant project.

Approximately eight (8) individuals will be served at any given time through October 2023.

Using the federally recommended best practice known as the Housing First model, the
Contractor develops Stabilization and Crisis Management plans and facilitates each participant's
relocation to sustained permanent housing. Additionally, the Contractor works to maximize each
participant's ability to live more independently by providing connections to community and
mainstream services, as well as through the creation of individual, annual service plans designed
to improve each participant's ability to maintain permanent housing.

The Department will monitor services by:

•  Conducting annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Reviewing semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic
information, as well as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Reviewing data entered into the New Hampshire Homeless Management
Information System, which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities
of shelter and housing programs.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Stratford County

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN#NH0053L1T002111

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Ldti A. Shibinette

Cor^issioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
Families in Transition (formerly known as FIT/NHNH, Inc.) ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019 (Item #9), as amended on October 21, 2020 (Item #13), and as most recently amended
on August 18. 2021 (Item #26). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractor Name, to read:

Families in Transition

2. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

October 31, 2023

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$441,800

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 1, Provisions Applicable to All Services, by adding
Subsection 1.10., to read:

1.10 The Contractor shall facilitate file reviews conducted by the Department onsite or
remotely, as determined by the Department, on an annual basis, or as otherwise
requested by the Department, that may include, but are not limited to, participant files
and financial data.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0053L1T001808 (November 1, 2019 - October 31, 2020)

NH0053L1T001909 (November 1, 2020-October 31, 2021)

NH0053L1T002010 (November 1. 2021 -October 31, 2022)

NH0053L1T002111 (November 1. 2022 - October 31, 2023)

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1. November 1, 2019 - October 31, 2023, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-
37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation.

-OS

kl)
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A03 Families in Transition Contractor Initials

6/7/2022
A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 4 Date
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8. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description November 1,
2019 through
October 31,

2020

November 1,
2020 through
October 31,

2021

November 1,
2021 through
October 31,

2022

November 1,
2022 through
October 31,

2023

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1 Operations $81,042 $83,473 $88,548 $93,861 $346,924

1.2.8.2
Supportive
Services

$21,264 $21,264 $21,264 $21,264 $85,056

1.2.8.3 Administration $2,455 $2,455 $2,455 $2,455 $9,820

1.2.8.4
Total Program
Amount

$104,761 $107,192 $112,267 $117,580 $441,800

1.2.8.5 Vendor Match 25% $26,190 $27,412 $28,681 $30,009 $112,292

9. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #3 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A03

A-S-1.0

Families in Transition

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials
I

Date

[ Alp
'67777D7T
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments.not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective November 1, 2022, or upon Governor and
Council approval, whichever Is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

6/7/2022

Date

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

—OocuSigntd by:

Title: Division Director

Families in Transition

%n/2022

Date

—>DocuS)gneb by:

AiAno. PtviW
5Ml72fl7AS»

Name'^^'"'® Devlin
Title: president & CEO

Families in Transition

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A03

Amendment #3

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

De^Signtd by:

6/7/2022

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Families in Transition Amendment #3

SS.2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11 -AOS Page 4 of 4
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Ejtfvbit B-4 Amendmeoi ff3 Budget

Fsmilies In Transition, Dover Permanent Housing

|CoC Funds - NH0053L1T002111

SFY23 - 11/1/22-6/30/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operating

Supportive Services 14.176

Administration

2S% Required Match

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 78.367

SFY24 - 7/1/23-10/31/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operating 31.287

Supportive Services

Administration

25% Repuired Match
TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE

10.003 10,003

39.103

TOTAL - 11/1/22-10/31/23

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Operating 93.861 03.661

Supportive Services'

Administration 2.4S5 2.4S5

25% Required Match 30,009

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BAUkNCE

Total W/O Match S 117,580

EjMK B-4 AmardrnM <3 BuSpM
fmrMm in TraraiUon, Dover Pannarert Houdng
S$-202P«HS-044>ERMA-11-A03

Contractor Initials

Page 1 ot1
6/7/2022
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTDFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Slate of the Stole of New Hampshire, do hereby certify ihat FAMILIES IN TRANSITION is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994. 1 further certify that
all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this ofTice is

concerned.

Business ID: 207982

Certificate Number: 0005779491

%
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanltm

Secretary of State



OocuSign Envelope ID: 8DDE5F63-5F83-41E5-BB9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Rov Tilslev , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be conrrect signatoi"y)

1. 1 am a duly elected Cierk/Secretary/Officer of Families in Transition
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a tnje copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 6 , 2022 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Dale)

VOTED: That Maria Devlin. President/CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Families In Transition to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and ail
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporationjn-coijtracts wittjjbe-^fafp of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: June 6. 2022 V
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Roy Tiisley
Title: Board of Director, Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATEt«kWDO/YYYY)

05/18/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE 13 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the cortlflcato holder (s an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tho pollcy(l08) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo ondorsed.
'  If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjoct to tho torms and conditions of tho policy, certain policies may roquiro on ondorsomenl. A statemont on

this cortlflcato does not confer rights to tho cortlflcato holder In llou of such endorsamont(8).

PRODUCER

MTM InsurancoAssoctales

1320 Osgood Strset

NorthAndover MA 0184S

Jeffrey Morrissotte

(978)881-5700 (978)681-5777

A^RESS' cartific8tftsQmtmlnsure.com
INSURERtSIAPrOROINQ COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A: Philadelphia hsurance Corr^eny
INSURED

Familioa In Transition, Inc and FIT/NHNH

Family Willows Limited Partnership

122 Market Street

Manchester NH 03101

INSURER B: State Haalthcore

INSURER C;

INSURER 0:

INSURER E;

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 22-23 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 13 TO CERTIFYTHAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTV/ITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSK
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSO wvo POUCYNUMBER

POLICY EPF
(MMmorYYYYl

POLICY 6XP
(MM/DO/YYYYt LIMnS

A

X COMMERCIAL CENERAL UABILn-Y

E  1 X| OCCUR
ability inci

PHPK23e507 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1,000.000

CLAIUS-MAO
LtAMAUt: lOlt^tNlbC
PREMISES rCn oearmnenl

1 100,000

X Professional LI
MEO EXP (Any on* MtMn) , 5,000

PERSONAL & ADV l.'^JURY , 1,000,000

ii
CJ

i

TAPPtiESPER:

rr 1 1 Loc
GENERAL AOGREOATE , 3,000.000

S/* Pf
POLICY Ps (P PROOUCTS • COUP/OP AGO , 3,000.000

OTHER: s

A

AUTOMOBILE UAOaJTY

PHPK2363612 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

COMOINED SINGLE UM/r
(Ea ascUeml

s 1.000.000

ANYAUTO

HEOULEO
rros
N.OWNED
TOS ONLY

OOOILY INJURY (Per oeraon) s

X
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

8C
At

OCDILY INJURY (Per accident) t

X X
NC

At
PROPERTY damage
IPtr eeririnnll

s

$

A

X UMDRELU LIAD

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMSUAAOE
PHU8788C18 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE , 5.000,000

AOGREOATE , 5.000.000

DEO 1 X3 RETENTION i 10.000 s

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIAniLfTY

ANYPROPRiCTORff'ARTNEfVEXECLmVE ("171
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MsndAtorr In NH) '
II yns. dnsiuibn undtr
0CSC.RIPT10N OF OPERATIONS behw

NfA HCHS20220000555 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

V"! PER 1 OTH.
•^1 STATUTE 1 ER

E.L. EACHACODENT , 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE , 1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LMIT , 1,000.000

A
Crime Coverage / Employee Dishonesty

PHPK236507 01/01/2022 01/01/2023

Limit

Doducllble

500,000

500

OCSCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES {ACORD 101. AddlUonil Ramarks Sehadul*, mir b« iitacM If mor» tpac* Is rwtuIrMf)

This certirtcate of Insurance represents coverage currently in effect and may or may not be in compliance with any whtien contract

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Stale of New Hampshire OepartmonI of HoaRh

and Human Servlcea

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY Of THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2018/03)

<D 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights roservod.

The ACORD namo and logo aro roglstorod marks of ACORD
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Families
in Transition

Our Mission

The mission of Families in Transition is to prevent and
break the cycle of homelessness.
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l^BerryDunn

Z

Families
in Transition

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for 2020)

With Independent Auditor's Report
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l^BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Families in Transition, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
of December 31, 2021 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2021, and the
changes in their consolidated net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Moine • New Hampshire • Mossochusetts • Connecticut • West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we Identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2020 consolidated financial statements and. in our
report dated March 29, 2021, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.
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Board of Directors

Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 3

Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the

.  Individual entities, and is not a required, part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 23, 2022
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Tptal current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Investments

Investment in related entity
Property and equipment, net
Development in process

2021

2,533,606
54,462

779,471

148,305
52.054

3.567.898

543,800
787,044

2,704,576
1,000

33,326,635
416,959

2020

3,536,208
67,946

1,691,498
87,753
60.946

5.444.351

512,271
847.300

1,235.007

1,000
34,425,916

218,835
30.638

Total assets $ 41.347.912 $ 42.715.318

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

$ 300,631 $
299,996
281,146
80.526

345,909
889,234

264,583
134.693

Total current liabilities 962,299 1,634,419

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized deferred costs 15.046.178 15.173.778

Total liabilities 16.008.477 16.808.197

Net assets

Without donor restrictions - controlling interest
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest

22,097,454
2.015.189

22.831,326
2.344.795

Total without donor restrictions 24,112,643 25,176,121

With donor restrictions 1.226.792 731.000

Total net assets 25.339.435 25.907.121

Total liabilities and net assets $ 41.347.912 $ 42.715.318

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

\A/ithout Donor Restrictions

- Controflino Interest

Without Donor Restrictions

• NoncontrollinQ Interest

Revenue and support
Federal, state and other grant support
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act

grants

Rental income, net of vacancies
Thrift store sales

Public support
Special events
Developer fees
Unrealized gain on investments
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Interest income

Irvkind donations

Forgiveness of debt
Medicaid reimtHjrsements

Other irKome

Net assets released from restrictions

Total revenue and support

Expenses
Program activities

Housing
Thrift store

Total program activities
Fur>draisir>g
Management and general

Total expenses

(Deficiency) excess of revenue and support over
expenses

Capital contributions
Partnership distributions

Change in net assets before redassirtcation of portion
attributable to noncontrolling Interest in
subsidiaries

Change in net assets attributable to noncontrolling interest in
subsidiaries

Change in net assets

Net assets. beginnir>g of year

Net assets, end of year

2.874.142 8

1.870.287

2.383.369
S92.00S

2.500.288
342.619

234.310
(267.413)

2.334
42.933
131.267

415,708
147.748

586.356

1 V655.953

10.274.521
412.054

10.666.575
809.441

1,226.858

12,722,874

(1,066.921)

3.751

(1,063.170)

329.298

(733.872)

22,831,326

Total Without Donor

Restrictions

S  2.874.142 S

1.670.287

2.383.369
592.005

2.500.288
342.619

234.310
(267.413)

2.334

42.933

131.267

415.708
147.748

586.356

11.655,953

With Donor

Restrictiona

i308)

(308)

(329.298)

(329,606)

2,344,795

10.274.521
412.054

10.686.575
809.441

1.226.858

12,722,874

(1.066.921)

3.751

<308)

(1.063.478)

(1.063.478)

25.176.121

1.082,148 t

(586,356)

495,792

495.792

495.792

495.792

731.000

22,097,454 % 2,015,189 $ 24,112.643 $ 1,226,792 $

ToUl Total

2021 2020

i  3,966,290 $ 4.932.560

1,670,287 4.183,652
2,383,369 2.492.880

692,006 410.942

2,600,288 2.952.466

342,619 420.547
- 121,670

234,310 103.827

(267,413) (1,362)
2,334 23.045

42,933 9.244

131,267 131.267
416,708 488,990

147,748 201,865

"12.161.745 16.471.593

10,274,621 10,277.005
412.064 415.817

10,686,676 10.692.822

809,441 1.074.295
1.226.858 1.186.537

12.722.874 12953.654

(671,129) 3.517.939

3,761 24.438
f308) (1.410)

(667,686) 3.540.967

(567,686) 3.540.967

26.907.121 22.366.154

26.339.436 $ 25 907 121

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

Program Activities

Management 2021 2020

Housing Thrift Store Fundraisina and General Total Total

aries and benefits

Salaries and wages $ 4.428.713 $  283.233 $  442.872 $  664,307 $ 5,819,125 $ 6,156,201
Employee benefits 498.412 21,465 49,841 74,761 644,479 650,333
Payroll taxes 343.091 23.293 34.309 51.464 452.157 433.083

Total salaries and

benefits 5,270,216 327,991 527,022 790,532 6,915,761 7.239.61.7

ler expenses

Advertising 3,998 13,668 350 525 18,541 36,363

Bad debts 25,698 - - - 25,698 63,594
Bank charges 12,545 8,246 1,207 1,811 23,809 22.092

Condominium association fees 14,575 - - - 14,575 15,515

Consultants 78,629 3,988 7,842 11,763 102,222 144,209
COVID expenses 22,161 - 2,216 3,324 27,701 428.144

Depreciation 1,221,584 3,404 93,661 140,492 1,459,141 1,382,232

Events 29,137 - - - 29,137 74,371

Food 238,472 - - - 238,472 156,813
General insurance 168,528 2,318 11,537 17,306 199,689 180,501

Interest expense 164,597 - 17,786 26,679 209,062 238,399

Management fees (1,604) - - - (1.604) -

Meals and entertainment 4,317 - 432 648 5,397 2,278

Membership dues 9,270 - 873 1,309 11,452 13,671

Office supplies 112,840 9,451 10,553 15,829 148,673 90,214

Operational expenses - other 362,333 - - - 362,333 156,304

Participant expenses 93,431 - - - 93,431 72,037
Postage 6,880 17 688 1,033 8,618 9,491

Printing 16,302 818 1,442 2,164 20,726 26,715
Professional fees 175,249 4,000 14,010 21,014 214,273 183,043

Rental subsidies 265,605 - - - 265,605 301,110

Repairs and maintenance 662,589 18,416 49,263 73,895 804,163 528,545

Staff development 26,318 187 2,622 3,933 33,060 31,816

Taxes 332,887 183 - - 333,070 340,333

Technology support 162,210 117 15,968 23,953 202,248 191,943
Telephone 104,863 1,535 10,189 15,284 131,871 148,667
Travel 28,865 84 2.871 4,306 36,126 28.318
Utilities 568,936 17,631 38,909 58,363 683,839 617,912

VISTA program - - - - - 79,431

Workers' compensation 93.090 - - 12.695 105.785 149.976

Total expenses $10,274,521 $  412.054 $  809.441 $ 1.226.858 $12,722,874 $12,953,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DDE5F63-5F83-41E5-BB9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized gain on investments
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Decrease (increase) in:

Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

(Decrease) increase in;
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments

Investment in development in process
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash used by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and restricted cash

Cash and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash and restricted cash, end of year

Composition of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year:
Cash and cash equivalents
Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties

Supplemental disclosures;
Acquisition of property and equipment and development in process through

accounts payable

Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings from seller
Property and equipment transferred from development in process
Interest paid

2021 2020

(567,686) $ 3,540,967

1,472,485 1,395,576
(131,267) (131,267)
(234,310) (103,827)
267,413 1,362

13,484 (445)
912,027 (1,102,280)
(60,552) (22,241)
39,530 (1.579)

80,826 (46,887)
16,563 (107,455)

(54.167) 75.022

1.754.346 3.496.946

(1,235,259) (7,767)
(450,004) (63,149)

f1.045.458) (2.227.481)

(2.730.721) (2.298.397)

265,091 2,452
(320.045) (268.663)

(54.954) (266.211)

(1,031,329) 932,338

4.895.779 3.963.441

3.864.450 $ 4.895.779

2,533,606 $ 3,536,208
543,800 512,271

787.044 847.300

3.864.450 $ 4.895.779

98.500 S 768.564

;  - $ 25.412

350.380 $ -

209.062 S 238.399

The accompanying notes are an Integra! part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT), an incorporated New Hampshire nonprofit, provides hunger relief,
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing and support services to individuals and families who are
homeless or in need in the State of New Hampshire. The programs and services offered provide
positive outcomes through the incorporation of evidence based models and practices to meet identified
needs and goals of those they serve and provide an Integrated system of care to prevent
homelessness when possible and rapidly rehouse those who become homeless, including both the
chronically homeless and families with children.

FIT directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street. Spruce
Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas StreetJn Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing facilities
are owned and operated by two limited partnerships of which FIT, or one of its subsidiaries, is the sole
general partner. These limited partnerships include Family Bridge Limited Partnership (Family Bridge),
located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family Willows Lirpited Partnership
(Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester, New Hampshire (collectively referred
to as the Limited Partnerships).

During 2021, Family Bridge reached the reached the end of its initial 15-year low-income housing tax
credit compliance period. As a result, effective August 31, 2021, BCCC, Inc. and Boston Financial
Corporate Tax Credit Fund XXII, withdrew from the Partnership and transferred their ownership interest
to Housing Benefits, Inc. (Housing Benefits), a non-profit Community Development Housing
Organization, located in Manchester, New Hampshire. In January 2022, Second Street Family Mill,
Inc., the general partner, transferred its ownership interest in the Partnership to Housing Benefits. As a
result, all assets and liabilities of the Partnership will have been assumed by Housing Benefits,
dissolving Family Bridge as a limited partnership.

FIT also owns and operates emergency shelters for homeless individuals in facilities located on
Manchester Street and Lake Ave in Manchester, New Hampshire. In 2020, FIT purchased an additional
property on Lake Ave in Manchester, New Hampshire where it will operate its food pantry formerly
located at the Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire facility.

Housing Benefits, a Community Development Housing Organization was created to identify and
develop new housing units and refurbish existing units to meet the persistent need of combating
homelessness. Completed housing units are located on Concord Street, School & Third Street, Lowell
Street, Belmont Street, Market Street, Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New
Hampshire as well as additional housing facilities Ideated on Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire
(Dover), and at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire and an emergency shelter location in
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire.

HB-AH, LLC (HB-AH) was legally formed as a limited liability company organized under the laws of the
State of New Hampshire, which is treated as a disregarded entity for federal income tax purposes. HB-
AH's purpose is to acquire, own, rent, operate and manage 23 residential apartments located in
Manchester, New Hampshire. HB-AH Is to operate exclusively to further the charitable purpose of
Housing Benefits, HB-AH's sole member.

-8-



DocuSign Envelope ID; 8DDE5F63-5F83-41E5-BB9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

FIT was the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEM), a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the Manchester, New Hampshire area.
During 2021, MEH legally dissolved and the program was absorbed by FIT's operations.

FIT also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC {Outfitters), a limited liability corporation. Outfitters
operates an independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire with the sole purpose of
generating an alternate funding stream for FIT.

FIT is the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide
entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for homelessness through research, education and
advocacy."

Wilson Street Condominium Association (the Association) was established for the purpose of
maintaining and preserving a five unit property located on Wilson Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire. FIT is the majority owner of the Association. .

FIT has several wholly-owned corporations which include Second Street Family Mill, Inc. (Family Mill),
and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General Partners), all of
which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent the .01% sole
general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Family Mill is a general partner of Family Bridge
and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.

FIT has begun the redevelopment of its property located on 434 Union Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The project will create 11 units of permanent, supportive housing for those experiencing
homelessness.

1. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810-20-25,
Consolidation, the financial statements of the Limited Partnerships are required to be consolidated
with these consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest is reported in
the consolidated statement of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of FIT, the Limited Partnerships,
Housing Benefits, HB-AH, Outfitters, NHCEH, the Association, and the General Partners
(collectively referred to as the Organization). All significant inter-entity balances and transactions
are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DDE6F63-5F83-41E5-BB9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classifications. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
Organization's December 31, 2020 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized
information was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report information regarding to their consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases In net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are declassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that increases net assets with
donor, restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction Is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 8DDE5F63-5F83-41E5-BB9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

The Organization reports contributions of property or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential
risk at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Reserves are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for operating
costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for rental
properties as well as certain other social sen/ices and programs.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated. Following is
a summary of estimated useful lives by asset category;

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and improvements 3-40 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Vehicles 5 years

Rental Income

Rental revenue is recognized pro rata over each tenant's period of occupancy. A contract is
entered into with a tenant and covers a period of twelve months. All rents are collected at the
beginning of each month and are nonrefundable. A tenant has an option to cancel a lease at any
time with a minimum of 30 days' notice, at which time the Organization will prorate the final rent
payment through a tenant's expected move-out date.
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When a contract is entered into with a tenant, the Organization collects a security deposit. The
security deposits are maintained in separate cash accounts and a corresponding liability is
recognized. Upon termination of a tenant's contract, the Organization assesses the condition of
the unit being vacated. If it is determined a unit is vacated in a condition equivalent to when the
tenant occupied the unit, the security deposit is refunded to the tenant. If a unit is determined to be
vacated in a condition less than equivalent to when the tenant occupied the unit, the security
deposit is retained and recognized as revenue.

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included In the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was
approximately $540,000 and $410,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and
benefits, depreciation and amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
direct payroll hours by functional cost centers.

Change in Net Assets from Operations

The consolidated statements of activities include a measure of change in net assets from
operations. Changes in net assets which are excluded from change in net assets from operations,
include capital contributions and partner distributions which are considered non-operating.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A){vi) public charity as described In Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax positions and to adjust its consolidated financial statements for the impact
thereof. As of December 31, 2021 and, 2020, the Organization determined that it had no tax
positions that did not meet the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable
tax authority. The Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return is
generally subject to examination by the federal government for up to three years.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC; AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

The Association is not exempt from income taxes; however, the Code categorizes any profits
realized by the Association from its member activities as reductions of members' contributions
towards the operation of the condominium property and not as taxable income of the Association
or its members. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 23, 2022.
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.

2. Availabilitv and Liquidity of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2021, the Organization has working capital, excluding current assets with
donor restrictions, of $1,402,203 and average days (based on normal expenditures) cash and
cash equivalents on hand of 43.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on long-term debt, and capital acquisitions not
funded through replacement reserves or financed with debt, were as follows:

2021 2020

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,533,606 $ 3,536,208
Accounts receivable 54,462 67,946
Grants and contributions receivable 779,471 1,691,498
Investments 2.704.576 1.235.007

Total financial assets 6,072,115 6,530,659

Donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds 11.226.7921 (731.0001

Financial assets available at year end for
current use $ 4.845.323 $ 5.799.659

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as described In Note
6.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

The Organization has replacement reserves and cash resen/es designated for properties as part
of its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority {NHHFA) which are only
available when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and cash reserves
designated for properties are not considered available for general expenditure withjn the next year
and are not reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a balanced
budget while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.

3. Investments and Fair Value Measurement

The Organization reports investments in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value with any realized or unrealized gains and losses reported in the consolidated statement of
activities. Investments are exposed to various risks, including interest rate, market volatility and
credit risks.

U.S. GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for
an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market
for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement
date. Fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The three levels of inputs
used to measure fair value are;

Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices
for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

Investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

Level 1

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,481 $
Equity mutual funds 123,584 776,600
Equity securities 1,791,812 53,820
Fixed income mutual funds 764.699 404.587

$ 2.704.576 $ 1.235.007

The Organization had no assets measured using Level 2 or Level 3 inputs at December 31, 2021
and 2020.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2020)

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Land $ 3,764,378 $ 3,764,378
Land improvements 812,301 666,247
Buildings and improvements 41,388,854 41,923,542
Furniture and fixtures 1,187,879 1,057,806
Equipment 691,474 639,373
Vehicles 307.197 386.565

48,152,083 48,437,911
Less: accumulated depreciation 14.825.448 14.011.995

Property and equipment, net $ 33.326.635 $^^^4^425^916

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization held $37,215,560 and $37,334,275,
respectively, of land, land improvements, and buildings and improvements for the purpose of
leasing to individuals. Accumulated depreciation on the land improvements, buildings and
improvements at December 31, 2021 and 2020 was $11,094,410 and $10,319,415, respectively.

5. Development in Process

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, development in process consisted of various projects in process
related to all of the properties owned by the Organization.

6. Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $550,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4%. There was no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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7. Lonq-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
2021 2020

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 42,847 $ 46,492

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is nonlnterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 183,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $883, including interest at 5% for five years. After five years,
the interest rate adjusts to match the then current Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston 5-year, 20-year amortizing rate
plus 2.50%. The loan is collateralized by real estate on Spruce
Street, Manchester. New Hampshire and is due and payable in
full in May 2034. 97,682 103,048

A mortgage loan payable to TD Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,123, including interest at 4.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payable in full in November 2023. 23,994 36,401

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024. 189,792 196,746

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1, 2034. 120,869 128,086
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A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2034. This note is
nonrecourse. 84,456 84,456

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note Is due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is
nonrecourse and is subordinate to the $84,456 note payable. 336,674 336,674

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to
Merrimack County, collateralized by Bicentennial property and
various financing instruments. The note is due and payable in
full in May 2033. 260,000 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Millyard II property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the
property or in May 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 436,958 445,068

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Millyard II property. Monthly payments of
$1,729 include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The
final installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 178,960 193,172

A note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by Millyard II property and various
financing instruments. A payment of interest shall be made
annually no later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of
the net cash flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt
Coverage Ratio, as defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal
payments shall be made no later than August 1 in an amount
that will result in a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid
amounts are due and payable in full on August 1, 2031. This
note is nonrecourse. 212,938 226,725

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by Millyard II property. Payment of principal is due and payable
on December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000
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A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvetment Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families I real estate. The note is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to
Community Development Finance Authority (CDFA),
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final installment is due and payable on June 15,
2022. 6,686 19,860

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30,2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TO Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,019
include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full in November 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT and Family
Mill. 375,832 396,436

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037. 493,132 505,816

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse. 63,635 72,726
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A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,922
include principal and interest at 3.25%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT and Big Shady Tree. 221,623 235,835

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,683 include principal and
interest at 8% per annum. The note was paid off in 2021. - 9,544

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039. - 592,650 617,613

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The noninterest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full by December 2040. 395,940 413,575

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The noninterest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable in full in August 2040. 34,628 34,628

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced in October 2012 and continue until the

maturity date in June 2041. 152,121 156,022

A noninterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefits to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/15th annually over the low-income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2021 and 2020, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and support in the consolidated
statement of activities. 590,696 721,963
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A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2028. 216,148 216,148

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. Annual
payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$5,000 are due annually by October 1. The note is due in full by
October 1,2045. 562,808 567,808

A mortgage, note payable to TO Bank, N.A.. collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $2,137 include principal and interest at 4.35%. The note is
due in full by April 2024. 363,729 372,849

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $472, including
interest at 4.25%. The loan is due in March 2025 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. 18,569 20,560

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $308, including
interest at 4.75%. The loan is due in October 2023 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 6,507 9,791

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2045. 750,000 750,000

A mortgage note payable to TO Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $991 include principal and
interest at 3.015%. The note is due in full by October 2025. 167,585 174,276

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,283 include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027. 355,288 364,674
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A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments including principal, interest and escrow of $6,854 are
due over a 30 year period starting September 2018 at 4.90%
interest. 687,042 707.538

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000. Annual payments are due in amounts equal to 25%
of surplus cash. The loan is due in full by November 1, 2047. 711,845 720,000

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit in monthly payments of $392 at 5.9% annual
interest rate. The loans are due and payable in March 2022. 841 15,937

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred.
Housing Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 'are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2019. The note is due in full by
October 1,2047. 1,448,182 1,453,182

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street, 3rd Floor. The note is funded by the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City
of Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has
a borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are incurred, Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due in full by December 1, 2047. 523,097 531,252

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located in Wolfeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments in amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The loan is
due in full by December 1, 2047. 780,000 780,000
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A mortgage note payable to NHHFA and is collateralized by the
real estate and personal property of HB-AH, LLC on Concord
Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The mortgage Is
insured by the U.S Department of Housing and Urban
Development through the Housing Finance Agency Risk
Sharing Program authorized by Section 542(c) of the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1992. Monthly payments
of $6,745 are due for principal and interest at 4.20%. All
remaining principal Is due on May 1, 2059. 1,525,843 1,542,342

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at the Union Street Shelter
in Manchester, New Hampshire. If the renovation project is
approved, NHHFA is expected to be the lead lender on
renovations. If the renovation project is not approved NHHFA
will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest bearing note
payable is due at the time of closing on the construction loan. 45,000 44,079

A note payable to CDFA, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2% will be
required until December 2021. 69 9,268

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $1,134,188. The
loan is due in full 40 years from the closing date. 157,854 -

noninterest bearing construction loan payable to City of
Manchester, New Hampshire, collateralized by real estate

located in Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a
borrowing limit of $275,000. 106.284 -

15,432,087 15,613,873

Less current portion 300,631 345,909
Less unamortized deferred costs 85.278 94.186

$ 15.046.178 $15,173,778

Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.
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Principal maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2022 $ 300,631
2023 551,965
2024 661,132
2025 305,829

2026 161,341
Thereafter 13.451.189

$15.432.087

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $13,344, was
$209,062 and $238,399 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.

8. Net Assets

At December 31, 2021 and 2020. net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2021 2020

Investments to be maintained in perpetuity, Income is
to support general operations $ 25.000 $ 25.000

Funds maintained with donor restrictions temporary in
nature:

The Family Place 53,258 134,190
Scholarships 26,664 19,264
Housing programs 164,098 35,000
Direct care for clients 407,049 147,904
Hope House 550.723 369.642

Total funds maintained with donor restrictions

temporary in nature 1.201.792 706.000

Total net assets with donor restrictions $1.226.792 S 731.000
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Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2021 2020

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Operating releases

The Family Place $ 80,932 $ 9,280
Housing programs 35,000 55,000
Direct care for clients 132,225 103,321
Hope House 338,199 21,566
New Horizons for New Hampshire merger • 76,944
Substance use disorder services ^ 97.717

$  586.356 $ 363.828

9. Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships" Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered Into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

10. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $107,457 and $99,580 during the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively.

11. Noncontrollinq Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows:

Limited Partner Property 2021 2020

BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge $ - $ 10
Boston Financial Corporate Family Bridge - . 607,520
Housing Benefits, Inc. Family Bridge 377,898
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Financial Midway Family Willows 1.637.281 1.737.255

$  2.015.189 $ 2.344.795
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12. Uncertainty

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
a global pandemic. Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the
spread of the global pandemic, COVID-19, by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in
many sectors and imposing limitations on travel and the size and duration of group meetings,
lyiany sectors are experiencing disruption to business operations. There is unprecedented
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and the
scale of government actions to mitigate them. To date, the U.S. government has passed
legislation which allows for increased funding to states to assist in paying for costs associated with
COVID-19. Therefore, while management expects this matter to impact operating results, the
related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated.

During 2020, the Organization received $1,188,400 under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP). The PPP funding has specific criteria for eligibility and provides for forgiveness of
the funds under the program if the Organization meets certain requirements. Any portion of the
funds that are not forgiven were to be repaid within 5 years at 1%. In November 2020, the
Organization received notification of full forgiveness and was included in CARES Act grants in the
consolidated statement of activities for the year ended December 31, 2020.

During 2021 and 2020, the Organization was awarded $347,447 and $2,832,815, respectively,
from the State of New Hampshire's Governor's Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery
(GOFERR). The GOFERR grants are pass-through grants provided to the State of New
Hampshire through the CARES Act. The GOFERR grants are to be used by the Organization to
cover eligible costs outlined in the grant agreements. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Organization satisfied the terms and conditions of the grant agreements and recognized the
revenue which is included in CARES Act grants in the consolidated statement activities for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

During 2021 and 2020, the Organization was awarded $1,322,840 and $162,437, respectively,
under the McKinney Emergency Shelter Grant Program. The funds were provided to decompress
the shelters as a result of the COVID-19. The grant was paid on a reimbursement basis as
qualifying expenses were incurred. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Organization satisfied the
terms and conditions of the awards and recognized the revenue which is included in CARES Act
grants in the consolidated statement activities for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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December 31, 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts recetvatile

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from related parties
Other cun-ent assets

Total current assets

Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties
Related party notes receivable
Accrued interest receivable on related party

notes

Investments

Investment in related entities

Property and equipment, net
OeveloptT>ent in process

Total assets

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payat>le

Accrued expenses
Due to related parties
Other current liat>ilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion and
unamortized deferred costs

Total liabilities

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions -

controlling interest
Net assets without donor restrictions -

noncontrolling Interest

Total net assets without donor

restriction

Net assets with donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

Families In

T ransition -

Ooeratino

722.833

84.544
779.471

97,886

1.970.270
3.445

3.658.449

90,178
88,427

1,725,799

1,344,742

2,679.576
1.247.739

7,420.192

416.959

18.672.061

101,515

211,220
207,768

125,946
6.442

652,891

1,860,532

2,513,423

16,158.638

16.158.638

Limited

Partnerships

45,847

10,636

15,177

1.814

15.931

89.405

16.158.638

18.672.061 S

125.386
260.024

7,114,322

7,589,137 $

67.852

89.383

837.425
217.812

27,506

1,239.978

3.573.193

4.813.171

760,777

2,015,189

2,775,966

2.775.966

Housing

Benefits

Family
Outfrtters

The New

Hampshire
Coalition to End

Homelessness

217,763
24,300

33,690

26,632
32.678

110.410 $

879

86.403

335,063 197.692

294.821
438.593

25,051

18.755,158

19.848,686

18.467

216.159 %

LIABILITtES AND NET ASSETS

-  $131.264 $

52.479

569.216

1,724.031
46.578

1.352
11.479

2.523.568

11,338,252

13.861.820

5.986.866

5,986,866

5,986,866

12.831

12.831

203,328

203,328

203,328

228,822

27.320

548

27.868

27,868

200,954

200,954

200.954

Wilson Street

Condominium

Association

228.822 S

228.822 $

7,691

921

921

921

58,681

58,681

58.681

With Donor

Restrictions

6.139 S

1,552

33,415

18,496

Eliminations

1,201,792 S - S
(65,897)

(2.085,119)

1,201,792 (2.151.016)

25.000

(1.725.799)

(1,344.742)

(1,271.790)

(82,679)

(1.344,742)
(2.068,337)

(3.495,758)

(1.725.799)

(5.221.557)

(1.271,790)

(1,271.790)

1.226.792

1.226.792 (1.271.790)

Total

2.533.606
54.462

779.471

148.305

52.054

3.567.898

543.800

787,044

2,704,576
1,000

33,326,635
416,959

^9j602 $^^J^226j792 $^_^6j493j3^ $,_^,^41^M7^

300.631

299.996

281.146

80,526

962.299

15.046.178

16.008.477

22.097,454

2.015.189

24.112.643

1.226.792

25.339,435

7389J37 S 19.848.686 S 216.159 $ 228.822 $ 59.602 $ 1.226.792 S (6.493.347) S 41.347.912
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The New

Hampshire Without
Families In New Horizons Manchester Coalition to Wilson Street Donor
Transition - Limited Housir>g Family for New Emergency End Condominium Restrictions With Dortor
Ooeratino Partnershios Benefits Dwtntter^ Hamoshim Houstno Homelessness Association Eliminations Total Restrictions Total

Revenue and support
Federal, state and other grant support $ 2.824.911 $ $  463,909 $ . $ $ S % $  (414,678) $ 2,874.142 S  1.082,148 S  3,956,290
CARES Act grants 1.670.287 - - - • - . 1,670,287 . 1,670,287
Rental income, net of vacancies 289.331 687.127 1,456,682 - - . - 98,190 (147,961) 2,383.369 . 2,383,369
Thrift store sales • - - 592,005 • - - . . 592,005 . 592,005
Public support 2,462,321 - 200,135 65 - - 80,134 - (242,367) 2,500,288 _ 2,500,288
Special events 342,619 - - . . - . . . 342,619 . 342,619
Property management fees 1,144,686 • - - -

- . - (1,144,686). . . .

Unrealized gain on investments 234,310 - - . . .
- . " 234,310 . 234,310

Loss on disposal of property and
equipment (260.590) (2.045) (3.463) • - . (1,315) . . (267,413) . (267.413)

Interest irtcome 96.244 286 1.965 - - - . 29 (96.190) 2,334 . 2,334
In-kind donations 42.933 - - . - . - . . 42,933 . 42,933
Forgiveness of debt - - 131,267 - - .

-
. . 131,267 131,267

M^icaid reimbursements 415.708 - -
- - . . . . 415.708 . 415.708

Other income 151.398 41,048 119,788 6,191 - - 600 . (171,277) 147.748 _ 147.748
Net assets released from restrictions 586.356 - -

. - . . -
. 586 356 (586.356) .

Total revenue artd support 10.000.514 726.416 2.370.283 598.261 . . 79.419 98.219 (2.217.159) 11.655.953 495.792 12.151 745

Expenses
Program activities 8.425.812 1.055,747 2,697,457 496,854 - . 54.626 100,813 (2.144.734) 10,686,575 . 10,686,575
Fundraising 588.381 • 221.060 - . -

-
.

- 809,441 . 809,441
Management and general 893 140 - 333.718 - -

-
. . 1.226.858 . 1.226 858

Total expenses 9.907.333 1.055.747 3.252.235 496.854 .

54.626 100.813 (2.144.734) 12.722.874 12.722.874

Excess (deficiency} of revenue
and support over expenses 93,181 (329.331) (881.952) 101.407

- -
24.793 (2.594) (72.425) (1.066,921) 495,792 (571,129)

Capital contributions - - .
. . . . 3.751 3,751 . 3,751

Member distributions - • (18,257) - . - . . 18.257 . .

Partnership distributions - (3.084) - - • . . - 2,778 (308) . (308)
Equity transferred resulting from dissolution 5.468.159 • -

- (5.639.571) 171.412 . . - _

Change in net assets S  5.561.340 $  (332.4151 S  (900.209) S 101.407 S (5.639.571) S  171.412 $  24.793 $  1.157 $  (51.392) S (1.063.478) $  495792 S  (567686)

-27-
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidating Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2021

Program Activities

Families In

Transition -

Operating
Limited

Partnerships

Housing
Benefits

Family
Outfitters

The New

Hampshire
Coalition to '

End

Homelessness

Wilson Street Program
Condominium Activities

Association Total Fundraistna

Management
and

General Eliminations

Salaries and twnefits

Salaries and wages $ 3.849.367 S $  579.346 S 283.233 $ $ 4.711,946 S
Employee t>enefits 405,748 - 92,664 21,465 . _ 519,877 49,841 74!761 .

Payroll taxes 304.824 • 38.267 23 293 - . 366,384 34,309 51.464 .

TotcU salaries and benefits 4,559,939
- 710,277 327,991 - . 5,598,207 527,022 790,532 -

Advertisirrg 3,498 . _ 13,668 500 . 17,666 350 525
Bad debts 7,740 - 17,958 . .

. 25,698 _ . .

Bank charges 11,661 404 415 8,246 60 5 20,791 1,207 1,811 .

Condominium association fees • - 73,104 . . . 73,104 _ . (58,529)
Consultants 72,570 . 5,850 3,988 209 . 82,617 7,842 11,763
COVIO expenses - 22,161 - - . . . 22,161 2,216 3,324 _

Depredation 321,890 280,321 614,718 3,404 170 4,485 1.224,988 93,661 140,492 .

Events 16,295 - 6,250 . 6,592 . 29,137 . . .

Food 196,374 . 42,098 . .
. 238,472 . _ .

General insurance 44,994 38,016 70,379 2,318 742 14,397 170,846 11,537 17,306 .

Interest expense 32,606 82,927 145,254 - . . 260,787 17,786 26,679 (96,190)
Management fees 90,948 243,505 727,203 . 34,420 25,973 1,122,049 .

. (1,123,653)
Meals and entertainment 3,921 • 396 .

-
. 4,317 432 648

Membership dues 8,730 - - . 540 . 9,270 873 1,309 .

Offrce supplies 82,547 3,671 22,983 9,451 3,569 70 122.291 10,553 15,829 .

Operational expenses • other 362,333 • - . -
. 362,333 .

Participant expenses 79,545 2,271 6,615 . 5,000 : 93,431 . .

Postage 6,770 • 110 17 - . 6,897 688 1,033 .

Printing 14,350 - 72 818 1,880 - 17,120 1,442 2,164 _

Professional fees 90,368 31,952 49,729 4,000 - 3,200 179,249 14,010 21,014
Related entity expenses 1,328,050 (100) (611,020) 60,000 . . 776,930 - . (776,930)
Rent 64,632 • - 24,800 -

. 89,432 .
. (89,432)

Rental subsidies 265,605 - -
.

. . 265,605 . .

Repairs and maintenance 223,916 133,698 268,711 18,416 . 36,264 681,005 49.263 73,895 .

Staff development 22,598 . 3,620 187 100 . 26,505 2,622 3,933 _

Taxes 52,991 70,848 209,048 183 . . 333,070 .
.

Technology support 157,444 1,837 2,243 117 686 . 162,327 15,968 23.953 _

Telephone 77,568 719 24,324 1,535 . 2,252 106,398 10,189 15,284
Travel 23,078 - 5,629 84 158 . 28,949 2,871 4,306 _

Utilities 103,195 165,678 285,896 17,631 . 14,167 586,567 38,909 58,363 .

Workers" compensation 77 495 - 15.595 . -
. 93.090 . 12.695 _

Total expenses S 8.425,812 $^^055^ $ 2,697.457 $ 496^ $ 54.626 S 100,813 $ 12,831,309 $ 809,441 S  1,226,858 $ (2,144,734)

Total

5.819.125
644.479

452.157

6,915,761

18,541

25,698
23,809

14,575
102,222

27,701
1,459,141

29,137
238,472

199,689
209,062

(1.604)
5,397

11,452
148,673
362,333

93,431
8,618

20,726
214,273

265,605
804,163

33,060
333,070

202,248
131,871

36,126
683,839

105.785

-28-
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Families'
in Transition

Board of Directors

Roy Tllsley, Chair

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Heather Whitfietd, Vice Chair

People's United Bank, Sr. Vice President

Board member since 2018

Frank Sagiio, Treasurer

Karr& Boucher, PLLC

Board member since 2018

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary
FIRST, Director of Corporate Relations & Field Development Strategy

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, At Large
Anagnost Companies, President

Board member since 2018

Scott W. Ellison, Esquire Prior Chair

COOK, UTTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley

Bartley Financial Advisors, President, CPA, CFP
Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone,
Comcast, Vice President, Human Resources

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet, Associate Director, Legal
Board member since 2018

AnnMarie French

NH Fiscal Policy Institute, Executive Director

Board member since 2018

Rev. 1/1/2022 RS
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Families'
in Transition

Brian Hansen

Worker Bee Fund, Founder

Board member since 2018

Brian Mikol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage

Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrich

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations, External Affairs

Board member since 2018

Roy Ballentine

Ballentine Partners, LLC, Executive Chairman,

Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

AmeriCorps/Portfolio Manager

Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

City of Manchester Police Department, Captain

Board member since 2019

Rev. Gayte Murphy

Minister At Large-United Church of Christ

Board member since 2020

Michael McCormick

Business Development Executive, CapgeminI Financial Services

Board member since 2020

Michael Simoneau

Members First Credit Union, SVP, Community Outreach Officer

Board member since 2021

Chad Campbell

SilverTech Inc., Vice President of Sales

Board member since 2021

Rev. 1/1/2022 RS
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Families
in Transition

Danielle Pllska

FIRST, Vice President, Finance

Board member since 2021

Robert Bonfiglio

Rise Private Wealth Management, Co-Founder

Board member since 2021

Melissa SzYmanowski

Coca-Cola, Beverages Northeast, Human Resources Director

Board member since 2021

Stephen Norton

Solution Health, Chief Strategy Officer

Board member since 2021

Susan Harrington

Brewster Academy, Chief Financial Officer

Board member since 2022

Rev.l/1/2022 RS
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Maria Devlin

Profile

Tenured profosstonel with extensive experience leading teams through bunding strateglas and hiltlatlves to drive high performance.
Adept at developing and carrytng ait a strategic vision, partlcularty those that require buy-In from Internal and external stakeholdBrs.
Expertise Includes fundralslng, change manageinent organizational leadership, budgot management and Improving engagement.

Ski l ls/Expertise

Exporienced with Organizational
Budgetir^ including Revenue &

Expense Accountability

Organizational Agility & Complexity
Management Teamwork and Team Building Skills

External Relationships & Partnerships
Customer Service Oriented

Face of the organization
Mbslon Focused

Goal Oriented, Leads by Example,
Visionary and Focused

Program/Project Management Experience

President & CGO

PamlilBs In Transition - New Horizons, Manchester NH 06/2020 - present

The President serves as Chief Executive Officer of Fomlllcs In Transition-New Horizons end will have ovcrell strategtcond operetlng
responsibility forstoff. planning, development, management and successful Implemcntaiion of progroms and services, community
engagementand execution of strategic objectives and mission of the organization.

•  Establlshlnu a vision for community Impact that Is achloved through the efforts of a diverse team of high-performing leaders,
•  Responsible for oversoelng the admlnbtratlon of prc^rams to Include financial performanco and viability, organization

mission and strategy, organizational operations,, resource development and community impact.

Oilef Executive Officer

American Red Cross of NH & VT, Concord, NH 03/2008-05/2020

Responsible for representing the American Rod Cross In the community. Focus externaDy on core mission deilvary, fundralslng
and being tho fnco of the Red Cross for the media, donors and their communities. Responsible for oversight and execution of a $S million
operating budget

•  Created ovarBll strategic planning and oversight for 3 major transitions In Northern New England. Oversight of execution of
staff end board Integration.

*  Lead orgonlzatlonal goals for service deilvary, fundraistna and oxtemal relations -for tho past 4 years have met or exceedod
key performance Indicators and revenue target of $1^ - 2.5 mUllcn annually

•  Lead dual-state (NH/VT) operations v;lth a team of 24 PTEs phis 1100 volunteers at multiple jocations-ln August 201S,
bogan merger with Red Cross of Maine to al^n staffing, processes, procedures for a new S-state region

«  Oulld lasting community partnerships with local corporations & groups to ensuro mission delivery such as - instelling over
12,000 free smoho alarms In homes across tho two states in 5 years

♦  Ensure that volunteers, youth and young adults are engaged and retained - 93H of our volunteer worWorco Is engaged In
providing at least one hour of volunteer time to mission within the lost fiscal year

Interim Executive Director

Director of Public Affairs

Children's Alliance of New Hampshire, Concord, NH 01/2007-03/2008

The Children's Alliance (now New Futures Kids Count) advocates, oducates and collaborates to Improve the health end v/dlness
of NH's residents. Collaborated with Board of Directors on organizational budget, dovdopmcnt goals, policy Initiatives and
orgonlzatlonal vahjasand mission. Responsible for OH operations! MR, P&l, Board Development, public policy advocacy Initiatives
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Maria Devlin

• OrganlzotI the Children's Advocacy Notwork-a diverse group of organizations end Individuals - dedicated to Improving the
life of children and families through legislative and public policy initiatives, such os statowldo kindergarten, statowlde
cMklren's health insurance, greater access to Children In Need of Sorvicos (CHINS) and maintaining access to Supplemental
Nutrition Asslstanco Program (SNAP) benefits

•  Acting as Che Interim Executive Director supported by 3 paid staff and a board of directors with 12 members
«  Stabilized fundralslng, oporations bnd personnel to ensure positive transition to now leadership
•  In partnership with the Annie E. Casey Foundation, created & released the 2007 Kkfs Count data book for Now Hampshire

an annual report which tracks child wellbetng. Data which Is used to enrich local and state-levGl discussions around policy
change.

Director of Annual Giving

Southern New Hampshire Unh/orslty, Manchester, MH 10/2(X)3-01/2007

llesponsible for increasing annual giving from SNHU oiumnl, family and friends through personollzed outreach,
donor rolationship building, and targeted fundralslng events.

•  Successful $50,000 asb to buSd stronger scholarship program for students at university, developed moves n^anagement
plans for donors to increase donor engagement and support

•  Managed annual giving program including direct mall, Telefund (connecUng with alumni through current students to raise
funds via phone calling) leadership and class gMng, faculty/staff ̂ ng, class gift and related events

•  Coordinated all stewardship activities for University President and VP, Development with average gifts over $15,000
•  Managed stewardship for nil scholarship donors with average gift of over $1,000

Director of Development & Program Services

Moltfr-A-Wish Foundation of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH 05/1996-10/2003

•  SuccossfuBy dovoloped, Impiomcnted and executed a new volunteer management program to grow active volunteer base
from 100 to over 500 vohintoers througiiout the state

• Managed & grew special events fundralslng from 15 events annually to over 160 events grossing over $1 million annually
•  Managed communications and public relations - created newsletters, managed website, pftdied wish stories to media ~

Increasing the number of fantllles reached to grant over 250 wishes each year.

Education

Southern New Hampshire University, Mandie&ter, NH Springfield CoDoge, Manchester, NH (satellite)
Master of Science, OrganlzBtlonet Leadership Master of Sclenco In Humon Services, Community Psychology

University of fUalne, OroiK), ME
Bachelor of Science, Oilld Development: & Family Relations

Additional Certifications and Development
•  Certified Personal Trainer, National Academy of Sports Medldno, 2019

•  AdultFlrstAld/CPR/AED-l-yearCertiflcation, American RedCross,201&

•  Leadership of Non-ProfIt Organizations, Graduate Certificate, Southern New Hempshire University, 2008

Honors& Achievements
•  201S Community SerUce Award Winner, Turkish Cultural Center of NH
•  2014 Excellence in Non-profit Award ftodplent from NH Business Review
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Maria Devl in

•  2013 Eki£inas5 Leader of the Year Pinnacle Award Winner, Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce
•  2013 Presenter at the Intemntlpna) Disaster Management Exhibition In Istanbul, Turkey
•  2013 Recognized as one of the Top Women-Led Non-Proflts by Business NH Magazine

Community
• Women's Resource Group founding member, American Red Cross 3/19-present
•  Governor's Council on Diversity and Inclusion, S/ld-presont
•  Waypolnt NH (formerfy known as Child & Family Servides of NH) Trustee, l/ZOlS-present
•  Volunteer New Hampshire, Board Member 2014-2016
•  NH Volunteer Organizations Active In Disaster (NH VOAD), Board Member 2014-2016



DocuSign Envelope ID; 8DDE5F63-5F83-41E5-BB9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLADC

OBJECTIVE

Continue to utilize and expand the cJinknl and management alcUla have I atmlned torn my
ptofcaalonal and acadeniic tnUnlng to seaiie a position In a nonprofit setting.

EDUCATION / LICENSURB

MftatccLlcciuied Aioohol and Drng Counselor So}>tembcc 2010- Pteacnt

Licensed Independent CUnlcnl Social Worker October 22,2012rPrcae«t

Master of Social Work, Uolversify of New HampalUrc May 2010
■  Giadmtcd widi an MSW from die Advanced Standing Pcoginm

Bachelor ofArt, Sodal Work, University ofNcw Hampshire May 2006
■ Graduated with an BSW widi GPA of 3.41

mfPLClYMP.NT

Vlco Prcsidctit, Clinical Be Supportive Services
PamlUcB In Transitloo-Ncw Horizons December 20*, 2017 - present
•  Rccdvcrship-Intedm Excccdve Director of Serenity Piacc
■ Ovcxsees all clinical and «upi>oitivc ecrviccs at Families in l-'ransition-Nav Horizons kidudbg

ctocfgency ahcltciv transldonal and pccmancnt supportive housing, Intensive Ou^^adcnt Services,
Outpatient eetviccs, Recovery Housi^ and programming.

" QuflU^ of control of healthcare fisdlUics Uccnsutc.
■ Ovcrdght of fidelity of evidence based practices and models.
■ Ovcrsi^t ofstaff competencies and required trainings for best ptaclicce across tlic agoocy.
■  Supervision of agency progom managers and housing director.
■  Provide dlulcal supervisor for liccnEufc and cccdficatiom.
"  Quality conCtol of oUbililog policies and ptoccdufcs.

Clinical Dircotor

FamllicB In TranrfUon Sept !•', 2016- December 2017
■  Ovcnicc and manage St. Housing Pcogmm Mmiagcx-wlio supervises the luppocllvo scrvlcca depnrtracnt vridi up

Co 25 staff ptoviAog housing (crdctgency, tcsnsitlonjil and pecQuneoi^ and supportlvo services vdrh capacity to
serve 200 homeless ltidl\'ldual and Cunlllcs. Suppottlve services eocomiMU indlvidoxl case mam^emcni,
thexapy, psycbo-edocatlonal woxtahoijs, pto-sodal £ia% accMtics and cdsla IntcrveoUoa

•  Ovatco the PamBy Willows Program Manager who supervises 11 clinical staff who cooducl cooccuaiuff
treatment to women mily

■  Dcvcbp and staff Recovery Housing program and Implementation of newest homing and supportlvo service
prc^rammltig

■  Develop and oversight OpcnDoon outpatwntpcogratnmbgforall tmnsUioofllbouslnBpxogtams ofWT
■  Ensure quality prr^tammlng across Families lo Transitions cflnlcal doparbucnt
■  Provide tralningwithin die oiganfcaitbn and comraunib' on substance misuse in Nli
■  Administer all progam poKdcs and pcocoduto for PawClcs In Transldon's various Supportrve Service
•  Oversight of billing components of oil levels of Co-occurring treaCrocnt.

Thcfflplat January 2014- Preaont
Bedford Fomify llicrapy
•  TccatacasdoadoflSr^cntalaflpavatcoutpnticntgrauppcactico
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*  Utilize various evidence bated pActlces CBXDBT, nnd Seeking Snfetjr skUls to bdp dienis owet tiielr owji
lodlviduni goab

■  Conduct Drug nud Alcohol assessments
"  Acdvc participant in DWI 0£Eender Progcnm provkhog nundsted ootpadent session foe indlviduaU coming

from the Im^xilred Drivers Pct^rom
■  Paelidp&te in weekly superrision with other licensed dioickns put of the private group pactlce.

CUolcn] & Suppotdvc Service Manager March ?■**, 2016- August 31*i,2016
PomlUes In Trausltlon

"  Manage tbe day lo day operaUoos for the IkitnUy Willows Substance Use Pcogam including six staff members
■  Manage the day to day operatloos for the Housing progoim of Fnmllbs b TeansltloiJ conalsring of over 200

fipsrtmcnt units In New fiampshlre. .
*  Provide clinical ftiuUdmlnJstmtivo supervision for a total of 14 staff focPomlllesXnTraosIdon
■  Ensure compliance with budgetary and flnandal goals.
■■ Maintain compliance with State, Fedem),Accredltadon, Contract and Insvunnce regulations.
■  Administer all program poHdes and procedure for PamlUcs In Transition's vsulous Clk^lcol Programs,

Program Manager of die Family Willow Stibstnacc Use Tronttnetit Progrtvm September 2014-2016
Famlllea In Troiisltloii

■  Matuge the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program lodndiDg six staff members
■  Tfonsitioned the program from grant funded to billing all coroinerdfll inuusmces
■  Iitcceosed accosslblU^ of ttoatmenr Gmro 86 clients in 2013 to 250 in 2016.
■  Provided cUolcol and odminlstratrTe oversight of the FW Substance Use Trcntmcnt Program
"  Carried o caseload of 12-15 Indlvldnal dtenta providing co-occurdng evidence base therapeutic Intcrvendons.
■  FftcIUtftted Intenalvc Outpnllent Itratment In a group ectiing on a weekly bash to group of 12 womeii.
■  Provided trainiog and education to staff on cUnlcol intcivenllori and best practices in the group setting

ThetflpiUt May 2010- September 2014
Families Xa Transition

■  Facilitated Intensive Ouqratient Programing in a group setting daily for up to 12 dicnLs
a  Carried a caseload of up to 15 people for Indivlduol tlierapy.
<• Provided crisis services for the bo^e of Families In Transition
"  Conducted Substance UtoDUordcr AsscMmentt for incotnlng clients
■  Produced treatment phnij progress notes and supporting doaimeotation b a timely manner
1  Helped Implement new cocidcuhim changes in the treatment programming

MSWlntom May 2009 to May 2010
Bedford Couaselliig -Me&tfll Henldt Cofttdr of Gtcnter Mnnchcster

*  Conducted Intake interviews for new, adult clients and develop) comprriicnsive psycho-sodol assessments to
inckido diagnosis and substance use assessments

*  Provided psychothcrapcutic Inccrvontloo services to twcn^-two individuals using brief treatment and cognitive
bcba^rioral iotcrvcotloos

■■ Auended l^rapeutJc urorkshops pertaining to dual-diagnosis, beluviorol hcaltli and client driven treatment
planning

Case Maoager JuAo 2006- Mny 2010
PamllleB In Tmuaillon

"  Provided in home case manageiiient services in 30 indivicluals and families to enhance bousing sbiUIity among
ibo homeless pr^latioo.

"  Provided crisis hotlloc coverage for all cHnical programming of E^mOics In TtansUiort '
■  Conducted program Interviews for tiio cpiuxrmalty support program
* Mdntalned all fOes with updated documentation, dene and con^e progresa notes and treatment plans
■  Facilitated woriuhops to help enhance ovcraU wolnoss to participants of the program
"  Cdiaborated with community partners to increase rcfoml ccsoueces

PR,0PHSS10NAL MEMBERSHIPS
Providers Assodatlon Board ofDircclots-Vicc Pxcsidcnt of Treatment July 2014 to Present
NH AlcolKri & Dtug Abuse Coiuisclofs Association January 2012 to Present
Metnf>cr of the Mtuiclicstet Substance Use CoUaborativc Match 2012 to Present

pRR<;RNrrATinNS

NH Association for infant mental health workshop Hewing ParcntB Be Parents:
Addressing Substance Use and Trauma in a Family System- Loon Mountain June 2015
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ProvidcM AaBoolatlou; Addrcseiog Substance Mbusc in tlw Home Environment Miuxii 31«^016 nt
Wcntwocrti Dou^s Hoapial bi Dova, NH

IIBFBRBNCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST
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Lauren Berman

Professional Experience

2018-Prescnt Director of Programs. Community' Action Partnership of Strafford County, NH

• Manage over 20 programs, including outreach services; electric and fuel assistance; housing and
homeless initiatives (federal and state-funded); weatherization; senior services and transportation.

•  Prepare and develop annual program budgets totalling 8 million.Prepare grant proposals for
current and new programs.

• Hire, train, mentor and manage 20-person staff.
• Developed program goals based on the organization's strategic objectives by building additional

homeless services in Strafford County. Expanded our geographic coverage and homeless drop day
center.

• Oversaw the development and operation of our first seasonal winter shelter and warming center in
2020-21.

2015-2018 Housing Stability Manecn Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

• Assisted clients with obtaining housing eligibility documentation.
• Assisted clients in identifying emotional, financial, and housing barriers while utilizing their

strengtlis to develop a case management plan.

• Executed the Housing First Approach to create a strength-based case management plan for the
client.

• Met with clients weekly to assess and assist family needs.
• Established and maintained positive, productive working relationships with team members,

mental health professionals, sheltere, law enforcement, and other community partners.
•  Proactively identified programmatic challenges and issues and provided recommendations for

improvement.

2010-2015 Welfare OfTicer. City of Somersworth, Soraersworth, NH

• Administered the general assistance program in accordance with the City of Somersworth
Assistance Guidelines and RSA:165.

• Established and maintained relationships with other agencies and organizations in the
community to ensure thai services were not duplicated.

• Worked with applicants to ensure that all necessary information is submitted to determine
eligibility.

• Made referrals when necessary., i.e.. Homeless shelters, food pantries.

• Updated the current City Guidelines 2015.

2004-2010 Founder and Partner. Good Works Employment Services York County
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•  Co-founder and partner of Good Work Employment Services (OWES), a locally run company
committed to assisting individuals in finding gainful employment, continuing their education,
securing volunteer opportunities, and obtaining housing. Clients refen-ed to OWES by the Bureau
of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR), DHHS ASPIRE and Child Protective Services, school districts
and private insurers.

Education

2019-2020 Alumni of Leadership New Hampshire New Hampshire
2017-2018 Alumni of Leadership Seacoast Seacoust, NH
1999 B.S. Therapeutic Recreation Ithaca.Collcge Ithaca, NY
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Samantha Robertson

Education

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE May 2015
Masters of Social Work, Advanced Standing
Summa cum Laude

PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY May 2012
Bachelor of Social Work

Concentration: Mental Health, Magna cum Laude
Phi Alpha Honor Society, 2012

Social Work Experience

NHTI CONCORD'S COMMUNITY COLLEGE, Concord, NH March 2021 - Current

CC Counselor

Provide compreherisive student development through mental health intervention
• Engage in short term solution focused counseling
• Conduct assessments in order to improve life management skills through a Wellness
Model

• Work collaboratively with SCAN/BIT team and Health and Wellness Committee
• Co-Facilitate campus wide mental health awareness initiatives with various NHTI
directors and NAMl suicide prevention
• Supervise MSW intern

• Implement and provide on campus crisis intervention and emergency protocols
• Connect and maintain community relationship partners
• Develop and implement Counseling Services policy and procedure
• Complete all administrative duties for Counseling Service (data tracking, reporting,
scheduling and outreach)

RIVERBEND COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH, Concord, NH
ACT Team Manager March 2018 - June 2019

• Served individuals with primary psychotic or major mood disorders, substance
misuse, homelessness, and legal issues
• Coordinated client discharges into the community from NHH and other DRF's
• Implemented yearly state and SAMHSA audit recomniendations and guidelines
• Provided crisis management, case management, and individual therapy
• Coordinated staff schedules, team meetings, and lime sheets

Adult Clinician July 2016 - March 2018
Provided individual and group therapy to SPMI population.

.  • Implemented therapeutic interventions (DBT, Motivational Interviewing, and CBT)
• Co-Facilitated skills groups such as DBT and Self-Esteem &Di$ordered Eating
• Provided safety and risk assessments for individuals with increased SI
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• Developed SMART goals, individual treatment plans, and daily SOAP notes
• Conducted intake assessments, eligibility, and diagnosis of prospective CSP clients

Clinical Case Manager June 2015 - July 2016
Provided clinical case management to SPMI and developmentally disabled population.

• Developed individual treatment plans to meet global and comprehensive needs
• Worked collaboratively with area agencies, family members, and guardiairs
• Provided functional support services and individual and group tlrerapy
• Completed service referral, clinical assessment, and crisis management

CROSS ROADS HOUSE, Portsmouth, NH May 2014 - May 2015
MSW Advanced Clinical Internship
Provided case management to mdividuals and families affected by homelessness.

• Developed individualized case plans and goals
• Provided crisis intervention and service referrals

• Worked collaboratively with Social Work team on program development
• Co-facilitated family meetings and Rent Ready workshops

School Based Experience

CAMPTON SCHOOL DISTRICT, Campton, NH Sept 2013 - May 2014
After School Homework Advisor

Supervised school aged youth K-8
• Coordinated and facilitated diverse educational enrichment programs
• Collected and documented weekly payments for afterschool program
• Collaborated with other educators on group activities

PLYMOUTH ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, Plymouth, NH Sept 2013 - May 2014
Preschool Individual Aid

Daily functional support for preschool aged male diagnosed on the Autism Spectrum
• Conducted 5hr behavioral monitoring through biopsychosocial assessment
• Completed Individualized discrete trials focused on lEP goals
• Aided in the development of gross and fine motor skills

PLYMOUTH PARKS AND RECREATION, Plymouth, NH Oct 2010 - May 2014
After School Homework Advisor

• Coordinated and managed diverse enrichment programs
• Provided after school homework support for school aged children K-8.
• Assisted in adminisb-alive duties; scheduling, filing, excel, and budgeting

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST
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Families in Ti'ansition

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Maria Devlin President/CEO 200,000 0% .

Mefthan Shea Chief ProRrams Officer 125,000 3% 3,750
Lauren Berman-Lefebvre Director of Housing Services 78,000 5% 3,900
Samantha Robertson Program Manager - Housing 65,000 15% 9,750
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHXRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIViSION OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

119 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9474 1.800^33.3343 Eit 9474

Fir603-27M230 TDD Acccu: 1.800.735.2964 www.dhtu.nb.tov

July 19. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing contracts in bold below ..with FIT/NHNH. inc.. (Vendor
#157730-8001) for the ongoing provision of permanent housing and supportive services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Federal Continuum of Care (CoC) Program, by
exercising contract renewal options by Increasing the total price limitation by $183,641 from
$460,028 to $643,669 and extending the completion dales as reflected in . the table below
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Area Served

A Program
Name

Current

Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount
Current

Completion
date

Revised

Completion
Date

G&C

Approval

Hlltoborough
County
PHVI

$142,748 $71,374 $214,122 8/31/21. 6/31/22

0: 07/14/19

(Item #9)
Ai: 07/26/20

(ltem#12A)
Merrimack

County
CCPH

$105,327 $0 $105,327 9/30/20

Allowed to

Expire
9/30/20

0: 07/14/19

Stratford

County
DoverPH

$211,953 $112,267 $324,220 10/31/21 10/31/22

O: 07/14/19

(Item #9)
AI: 10/21/20

(Item #13)

Total: $460,028 $183,641 $643,669

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limltatjon and encumbrances between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

77u Department of Health and Human Sereieet' Mieeion it to Join eommuniilet and familiee
in providing epporlunitiee Jar eiUttne to achieve health and independence.
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His Exceller>cy, Governor Christopher T. Sunurwj
and the Honorable Councfl

Page 2 of 3

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER
PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc TBD $206,314 $0 $208,314

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc TBD $204,088 $0 $204,088

2022 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc TBD $47,626 $0 $47,626

2022 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief
TBD $0 $134,324 $134,324

2023 102-500731

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

TBD $0 $49,317 $49,317

.

Total $460,028 $183,641 $643,669

EXPLANATION

Federal regulations require the Department to identify each vendor,' by name, during the
annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process, prior to the grant awards
being issued: A competitive process occurs at the Federal level and the Department delivers the
funding to the Contractors through these agreements. Specifically, HUD reviews the applications
and subsequently awards funding based on pre-established criteria.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing a Permanent Housing program that
delivers rental assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals and families who
are experiencing homelessness.

The programs serve individuals and ifamllies experiencing homelessness. Approximately
tvkfenty-elght (28) individuals will be served from September 1. 2021 to October 31. 2022.

Using the Housing First model, vendors develop Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans and facilitate each participant's movement into sustained permanent housing. Additionally,
vendors work to maximize each participant's ability to live more independently by providing
connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following toots:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative, rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, Including various demographic Information and
income and expense reports, to Include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which Is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs.
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His Exoellertcy. Oovomor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2..
Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for the one (1) remaining year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive senrices available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families, in
unsafe and potentially deadly situations, without a safety net. Addrtlonally. If data Is riot collected
as required by the contracts, the Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations,
which could result in a loss of federal furiding for these and other types of permanent hpusing and
supportive service programs.

Area served; Hillsborough and Strafford Counties

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267. FAIN # NH0026L1T012013. NH0053L11002010

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

I rtn A QKtKrff^AHALori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment ̂2

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Dover Permanent Housing contract is by and between the
Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and
FIT/NHNH, Inc. ("the Contractor).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019 (Item #9). as amended on October 21, 2020 (Item #13), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

■  10/31/22

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$324,220

3. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Permanent Housing Program, Section 1, Provisions
Applicable to All Services, Paragraph 1.9, to read:

1.9 The Department shall annually conduct a review, onsite or remotely at DHHS's discretion,-
of the Contractor's participant files and at least one month of financial data to ensure
compliance with the contractual objectives.

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0053L1T001808 (November 1, 2019 through October 31, 2020).

NH0053L1T001909 (November 1. 2020 - October 31. 2021).

NH0053L1T002010 (November 1, 2021 -October 31, 2022).

5. Modify Exhibit 8.'Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.7, Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read:

1.2.7.1. November 1, 2019 - October 31, 2022, not to exceed the amount specified in Form P-
37, General Provisions. Block 1.8., Price Limitation.

kD
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A02 FIT/NHNH. Inc. Conlractor Initials

TTTTJTSn.
A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 4 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 8DDE5F63-5F83-41E5-8B9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 23A4B1CB-E56E-47ED-9804.296279C6DE5E

6. :Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description November 1,
2019 through
October 31,

2020

November 1,
2020 through
October 31,

2021

November 1,
2021 through
October 31,

2022

Total

Cumulative

Amount

1.2.8.1 Operations: $81,042 $83,473. $88,548 $253,063
1.2.8.2 Supportive Services: $21,264 $21,264 $21,264 $64,092
1.2.8.3 Administration: $2,455 $2,455 $2,455 $7,365
1.2.8.4 Total Proaram Amount: $104,761 $107,192 $112,267 $324,220

1.2.8.5 Vendor Match (25%): $26,190 $27,412 $28,681 $82,283

7. Add Exhibit B-3, Amendment #2 Budget Sheet, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A02

A-S-1.0

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials.

Date

M.D

777777071
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective November 1, 2021 upon the date of Governor
and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written t>elow.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

x'^0»<uSlgn#« by:

7/23/2021 CiUirfiw

OOOOS4FFEC6D4S4...

Date Name; chnstme santamei io

Title: Associate Coniffiissioner

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

^•■^OoeuSlgntd by;

'/"/2021
-AS3J1?2B7<eMOC.-

Date Name: Maria Devlin
Title: President 4 CEO

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Amendment #2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11-A02 Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

C—Do«uSlen*4 by;
—Q7744ai9roM4Fa0?T4<«1?COfl<Ugt

Date Name: Takhmlna Rakhmatova

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

FIT/NHNH, Inc. Amendmenl #2

SS-2020-8HS-04-PERMA-11-A02 Page 4 of 4
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Frr/NKNH: Oovtr Ptrman»nt Housing

|CeC Funds • NHOOS3UT002010

UriUt S-3, A(ii«ndm«nt li Sudcct Sncct

1 SFY22. - 11/1/21-6/30/22 .  1
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Nsmo BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MOtfTHLY BUDGET YTO MOffTHLY
Oporaitng t  $a.Q9 s t S S . S. i  M.ao S •

Suppor*<« Servtces S  M.lto % S s  -■ $ ■ i »  . 14.170 s -
Administrstion - S  >.02 s s • s i ' 1.8)7 s -
2S% RaqtirM M«ch s  ia.121 s t  10.121 s s -
TOTAL HUO FUNOS/BALAHCE t  (JAM s  • • . - •  ia.i2i t • s S  74.04S s. •

SFY23 • 7/1/22-10/31/22
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MOtfTHLY
Opera Sng 1  2aAta t • • . s. », • S %  29.510 s • 5  ,
Supponx* Serttcos S  7.068 1  ~ s S • s 5 . 7.0« t ■
Administration s  Ota s s s. - s 5  010 t-

25% RoquirM Matcn S  «J«0 »  - S  t.SM $ s •
lOTAL HUO FUNDSfBALANCE I  4M8I % »  a.Ma t - s S  .V.433 t -

TOTAL.- 11/1/21-10/31/22
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name eUOCET MONTHLY BUDGET rro MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY
Ooersiing
Supponn* Swvicus
AdtnMstraiion

2S% RKjuirud Uatcft
TOTAL HUO FUNOS/BALANp^

ToaiWOUateh t 112.2S7

E-3. Amendment *2 Sudcet Sheet
FfT/NHNH, Inc Dover Permanent Housing
SS-2020-«KSD<-PeitMA-l I-A02

Contractor Inldah

Page 1 of I 2/22/2021
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Ckrltifec L SaeaokOo
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIKE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiOS OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
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/  September 21. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concofd. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic
and Housing Stability, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with the vendor listed in bold below for the ongoing provision of permanent housing and
supportive services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a contract renewal option
by extending the completion date from October 31, 2020. to October 31, 2021, and by
increasing the total price limrtation by $107,192 from $281,462 to $388,654, effective
November 1, 2020, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on August 14,
2019, item #9.

Vendor Name Vendor Code
Area

Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

FIT/NHNH. Inc.,
Manchester, NH

157730-B001 Manchester $71,374 $0 $71,374

FIT/NHNH. Inc.,
Manchester, NH

157730-8001
Merrimack

County $105,327 $0. $105,327

FIT/NHNH, Inc.,
Manchester,

NH

167730-8001
Strafford

County
$104,761 $107,192 $211,953

Total: $281,462 $107,192 $388,654

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with .the authority to adjust budget
line Items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

7V DfpQrtitxtnt tfUeaUH ok/ Hunion Strvitu'Miuion it to join ecfnmuniUttand fomUin
in providini opporlunilitt fordiiitnt to achieve health and independtnte.
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Hie Exoollency, Governor Chrhtopher T. Sununu
and me Honorable CounoO

Paoe2of3

05.95^2-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUIRAN
SVCSi HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Flacat

Year

Class /

Accourtt
Claaa Title

Job

Number

Currant

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revlaed

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
T8D $208,314 $0 $208,314

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Prog Svc

TBD $73,148 $71,462 $144,610

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD SO $35,730 $35,730

Total $281,482 $107,192 $388,654

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the contract was originally approved as sole
source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendment to be labelled as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing permanent housing programs
that deliver rental and leasir>9 assistance; service access; and supportive services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness.

The programs serve individuals and families experiencing homelessness who
would otherwise likely be left In unsafe situations without permanent housing.
Approximately thirty-eight (38) individuals will be served from November 1, 2020, to
October 31. 2021.

Using the Housing First model, the Contractors develop Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans and fadlrtate each participant's movement into sustained permanent
housing. Additionally, the Contractors work to maximize each participant's ability to live
more independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information
and income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

• Timely and accurate data entered by the Contractors into the New
Hampshire Homeless Management information System, which is the
primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section
2.. Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement
for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department Is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years
available.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will
be fewer permanent housing options and supportive services available, leaving
vulnerable individuals and families, in unsafe and deadly situations, without a safety net.
Additionally, if data is not collected as required by the contracts, the Department will be
out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding
for these and other types of permanent housing arxj supportive service programs.

Area served: Manchester and MerrimacK and Stafford Counties.

.  Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267. FAIN #NH0053L1T001909

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner



DocuSign Envelope ID; 8DDE5F63-5F83-41E5-BB9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

DocuSIgn Envelope 10: 23A4BlCe-ESdE-47ED-9804-2d627dC6OESE

OocuSlgn Envelope ID: A9ie2D2»-97AM84E-AOC4-CSBiC647F270

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing Contract

This 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Dover Permanent Housing contract {hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Oepanment") and FIT/NHNH.'Inc.. (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a.place of business at 122 Market Street. Manchester.
NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on August 14, 2019, (Item #9). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2.. Renewal. Paragraph 2.1.. the Contract may be amended upon
written agreerrient of the parties and apjsroval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Dale, to read:

October 31. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$211,953.

3; Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1, Subsection 1.2..
paragraph 1.2.4.. to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers NHQ053L1T001808 (November 1, 2019 through October 31, 2020); .
NH0053L1T001909 (November 1. 2020 - October 31. 2021)

4. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Subsection 1.2.
Paragraph 1.2.7, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.7.2, to read:

1.2.7.2. November 1.2020 - October 31. 2021. not to exceed $107,192 '

5. Modify Exhibit 8. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1.. Subsection 1.2..
Paragraph 1.2.8.. to read:

1.2.8. Funds atlocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

Description

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services:

1.2.8.2. Operating Costs:

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses;

1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount:

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%):

November 1,

2019 through
October 31,

2020

$21,264

$81,042

$2,455

November 1,
2020 through
October 31,

2021

$21,264

$83,473

$2,455

Total

Cumulative

Amount

$42,528

$164,515

$4,910

$104,761

$26,190

$107,192

$27,412

$211,953

$53,602

6. Add Exhibit 8-2, Amendment #1 Budget Sheet, which is attached hereto and inco'r
reference herein.

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-11.A01

Amendmem 01

Page 1 ol 3

Contractor Initials

Date

AlP

•^ed by

9/28/2020
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/29/2020

Date

.  >r.

Title: oi rector

9/28/2020

Date

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

DwuUgnH »ir

I Al4/|(L

Name:^''i« oevTwi
Title: President & CEO

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PeRMA-11-AOl

Amendment

Page 2 cl 3
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New Hampshire.Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Dover Permanent Housing

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

9/29/2020

—OMtWpMbr

Date pines
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF-STATE

Date Name:

THIe:

FlT/NMNH, Inc. Amendmenl

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-1 t-AOl Page 3 of 3
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CzhM B-2, Ainvndment Bl Bud|et Sheet

F1T/NHNH: Dover Permtnent Housir>g

(CoC Funds ■ NM005311T001909

asyaisi'
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE evIS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supportive Services S  14.178 1 8 9 1 • 8 I  14.178 3 • %

Openting 3  55.649 S 8 • S 8 • $ 8  55.849 8 • t

Mminialfetion - S  • 1.637 1 S 3 . 8 • 8 8  1.837 3 • %

25% Required Mstch S  18.275 8 8 3 18.275 3 - 9 t t - $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE I  88.737 8 8 S 18.278 8 - 8 8  71.482 3 - S

aK?aiEQ
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTMLY BUDGET YTD MONTRLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Supponive Sendees 7.0S8 7.089

Openting 27.R4 77.e24

Adrmncstruion • Ift 81*

25% Required Match

TOTAL KUb FUNOSmALANCL
8.1S7 9.137

4M87 #,1J7 15.730

^EQ2D>
TOTAL PROGRAM COST

imrV/f7X&073^!/^
dONTRA^TOR SHARE

SS72iS}f0a®
BHS SHARE

Activity Name
S

BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

upponiw Services 71.284 21.284

OperaUng 83.473 83.473

Admiriistmion 3.455 2,455

25% Required Mxtft

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE

27.412 27.412

134.804 27.412 107.192

Tottt wm Mttch 107.193

Contractor inJtJati

PIT/KHNH, inc. Dower Permaneni Housing

SS-202DBHS-04-PERMA-11-A01 Pagelof.l Date
9/28/2020
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JtfTrey A. Mtytn
Commissioner

Oirtsilne L. Sontsnieiie

Dirc((or

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANTSTREET.CONCORD. NH 03301
603-371-9474 I-600-852-334SEXL9474

Fax:-603-271-4230 TDDAcceu: 1^00-73^2964 www.dhhs.nh,gov

July 17. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter'into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide Permanent
Housing programs and Supportive Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal
Continuum of Care Program in an amount hot to exceed $281,462, effective per the dates indicated in
the table below, upon Governor and Executive Council approval, through the completion dates indicated
below. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor

Name
Project
Name

Vendor

n
Location

Effective

Date

Complotlon
Date

SFY

2020

SFY

.2021

Total

Amount

FIT/NH

NH. Inc.
Permanent

Housing VI
157730-

B001 Manchester 9/1/19 8/31/20 . $59,478 $11,896 $71,374

FIT/NH

NH.Inc.

Concord

Community
Permanent

Housing

157730-
BOOl

Merrimack

County 10/01/19 9/30/20 $78,995 $26,332 $105,327

FIT/NH

NH. Inc.

Dover

Permanent

Housing

157730-

8001
Stratford

County
11/1/19 10/31/20 $69,841 $34,920 $104,761

Total $208,314 $73,148 $281,462

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts in State
Fiscal Years (SFY) 2020 and 2021 upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $208,314

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $73,148

Total $281,482
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The' U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date of a grant is based
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative

services.

Collectively, these vendors have a target to provide permanent housing and supportive services,
to a minimum of thirty-eight (38) participants from September 1. 2019 through October 31. 2020. .

The attached agreements represent three (3) of thirty (30) total annual agreements, many of
which have renewal dates dispersed throughout the catenda'r year, with vendors who are located
throughout the state, to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's
Continuum of Care Program.

Using the 'Housing First' model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services to maximize the participant's ability to
live more independently:

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing instability and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and
strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main, purposes;

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis. ^

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
Individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that Include the collection of data relating to
' compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
and/or outreach/supportive sen/ices will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry
in the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required
by law to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management
Information System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and
housing programs funded through these contracts.
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His Excellency.'Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of these agreements, the parties have the option to extend contract
services for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests. Permanent Housing
and Supportive Services for Individuals and families, who are experiencing housing instability and/or
homelessness. may not be available in their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for
services placed upon the communities' local welfare authorities and other human-services providers. It
may also cause individuals and/or families to not have access to housing, and therefore, experience
homelessness.

t

Area served: City of Manchester and Merrimack and Stafford Counties; a minimum of thirty-eight
(38) individuals will be served collectively.

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Office of Community Planning and Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A Meyers
Commissioner

The Dcparlment of HeoUh ond Human ServiKs' Miseion i$ to join conimunitiee and fomilice
in providing opporluniliet for citiseni lo achieve health and independence.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DDE5F63-5F83-41E5-B89A-FEC0FB24FF2F

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 23A4BlCB-E58E-47EO-9d04.296279C6DE5E

FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 5/8/15)Subject: Cgnlinutiin of Care. FfT^tWH '"g Doyg'- Permanent Hoiisine. SS-2020.BHS.Q4.Perma-11
Notice: This a^eement and ail of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State ofNcw Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.) Slate Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.3 Commcior Name

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

1.2 State Agency Address
129.Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301,

\.A Contractor Address

122 Market Street

Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641-9441

1.6 Account Number

O3-95-42-4230IO-7927

102.500731

1.7 Completion Dale

October 31,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

JI04.76I

1.9 Coniraciing OfTicer for State Agency
Nathan D. White

Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9631

l.li Conlracior Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: Stale of New Hampahir© County of Hilbborcugh

On July 16. 2019 ; before the undersigned ofTicer, personally appeared the person idcmined in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block I.I 1, and acknowledged thai s/hc executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

•• •

fU/ni A. 6YREK, Notary PuWic
Uy CornnWon 8optBrnber5,2023

.1,13.2 • Name and Title of Notary or ftsticc of the Peace

^th Syrek, Admin. Asst.. Notary Public
1. 14p^tate Agency SignafiD'e6  .sigiimufc . pv

'fii'h Kj mm w\jD.te;^ / I ̂  1 ̂
Nan>a.and Title of Slate Agency Signatory

1 li^ cQtmn le/Av „
1.16 Approval by the N^H.Npcpartment of Administrrflion, DivisionofPersonncI (if applicable)

By: . ■ ~ Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the AU^y General (Pom, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By:

1.18 Approval by^e Covrfnor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4
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2. EMPLOyMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORM ED. The Stale of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency ideniified in block 1.1 ("Suie"), engages
contractor ideniified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perforTT),
and the Contractor shall perform, the svork or sale of goods, or
both, Ideniiried and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES-

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of (he Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this.Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
Kereunder, slustl become efTcclive on the dale llic Governor.

and Executive Council approve (his Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date (he
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commcfKCS the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior .
to (he Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of (he
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become efTective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
(he Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete ell Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availabitity and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall (he Stale be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated lunds, the Slate shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, ifevcr. and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to tiransfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in (hat
-Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRJCE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EJQflBfT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to oiTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to (he Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to (he
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Umiiation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of (he Services, the
Coniractor shall comply with all staiuies, taws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon (he Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include (he requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to (he Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During (he term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall ■

not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afTirmalive action to prevent such discriminaiion.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United Stales, (he Contractor shall comply with all the
provisionsofExccutive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor funher agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations end orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

»

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after (he
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or official, who is materially involved in (he
procurement, administration or performance of this

of 4

Contractor Initials

Date Jutye, 2019
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agrecmcht.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.

8. EVENT OF DEFAUtT/RCMEDieS.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contraaor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure 10 perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to pcrfonn any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, In the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, efTective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contntctor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending alt payments to be made under this
Agreemenl and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any

. Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreemenl as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDEf^lALlTY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall-mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps,'charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 AJ) data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreemenl for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 'A or other existing law. Disclo^re of data
requires prior written approval of (he State.

Page 3

10. TERfVIINATlON. In the event ofan early termination of
this Agreemenl for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifleen (15) days after the dale of
termination, a report ("Termination Report'.') describing in
detail all Services performed, and the conlrad price camcd, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
maner, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

J I. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither (he Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor sholl not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without (he prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by (he
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,

.  liabilities or penalties asscned against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of, '
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise oul oQ (he acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notvrithsianding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor sholl, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, (he following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against oil
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and $2,O00,OD0
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of (he property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State ofNew Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4

Contractor Initials

DatcJu'yie. 2019
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14.3 The Contractor shollTumish to the Contracting OfTcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceniflcatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Comrocipr shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ceniricaie(s) of
insurance for all rencwal(s) of insunmce required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certincate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ceriiricatc(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thiny (30) days prior svriiten
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

I S.I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
cenifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Contpensoiion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to (he
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified In block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proofof Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂ A arid any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be aiiached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Worken*
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce ony provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deerned to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by cenifted mail, postage prepaid, in a United'
Slates Post OfTice addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and i .4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only afler approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire unless r»o

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Slate law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, ond is binding upon and
inures to the bcj>eni of (he panics and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panics to express their mutual
intent, and no rule ofconstruciion shall be applied against or
in favor of any pany.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer ony such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
ore for reference purposes only, arxl the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to cxplairt, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of (he
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agrecment will remain in full force and
efTcci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
bd executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

- 1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General.
Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has'the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and conftdentlaiity laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
. thereto, as detailed In the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 576: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy. Including
specific Information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the Slate or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an Inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which Is to facilitate the movement
of horTieless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

FIT Dovw Permanem HoiaVio E*NbHA Contractor InMalt f ̂
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2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall irhpiement and participate in the Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all
projects funded by the CoC Program/Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing
Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule. 24
CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Housing Program that is targeted to serve eight (08)
homeless individuals in Strafford County with tenant-based. rental assistance and supportive
services, and which includes but is not limited to:

2:2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First' model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a parlicipanl
maintain housing: arid

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis' management plan with the participant, at
intake and. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuurii of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status In iaccordance with 24.CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified In 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent'
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 576.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
only If the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provided Q letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor,- mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records: court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

FIT Oev*rP«nn*neni Housing ExitbHA Connctor inntals.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence.
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records: law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator, of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, Including
emails, volcemails, text messages, end social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
.where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;'

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
• relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period: or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-parly verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program-participant Is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or al-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided In 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housino Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.-

FIT Oovfr PomAAftM Housing Exhlbii A Contrvcto' Mtsi*
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2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with;

2.4.1. The Ofaanizalional conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall devebp, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy,
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95. including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with;

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(9);

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furtherinc Fair Housino bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and ■

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Reouirements In 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure;

.  <

-  2.7.1. All records containing protected Identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential:

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting-privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to slate or federal law or regulation.
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3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1-1. Annual Performance Report fAPRl: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project In the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NORA). The APR shall be In the form required or specified by (he State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the Slate in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. • The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS. Including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The.Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
• Application #SF'424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed In all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to the following:

5.1.1.1. httPs://www.hudexchanQe.info/proarams/coc/svstem-DBfformance-measures/#Quidancfi:

5.1.1.2. 24 CFR Part 578; Continuum of Care Program; and

5.1.1.3. Public Law 102-550

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee. may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed underthis Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Seivices. the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block

,  1.8, Price Limitation and for the lime period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement Is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFOA). as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0053L1T001808

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)
1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care. Permanent Housing
1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. November1.2019-October3l. 2020, nottoexceed $104,761

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $21,264

1.2.8.2. Operating Cost: $81,042

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2.455 •

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $104,761

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $26,190

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Ftnanclal Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1, Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1),copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
105 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

ss-202oeHS4>4.r>EnMA-i 1 p*ga 10/10 o«u July 16, 2019
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only In accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Govemmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.
\

3- Project Costs: Payment Schodulo: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project Activities, as
determined by the Stale to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR.part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:
s

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented wilh each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leaslng funds. wilh no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other, sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities thai are eligible under subpart 0 of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3:3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement In 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third parly
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records Include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Proiect Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures Incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
'  allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit B. The Contractor must

have written approval from the State prior to billing for eny other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line Item not to exceed an
amount as specified In this Exhibit, and defined by MUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102*550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall t>e made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the. Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A*Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall Ido submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B..
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinosupportsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Perfonnance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any Items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the. disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. . If the Slate disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, In whole or in part. In the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said sen/ices, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 6, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithistanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreernent of both parties and may be made through the Budget OfTtce without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense Ellglbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor, shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Qperatino Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include;

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing:

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and Insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1:5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.'

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project:

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance af>d repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. SuDrx?r1ive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with a!) HUD regulations In 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to Individuals actively participating In the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578;53(a) (2):

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program

. parliclpant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness. including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of Improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

. 5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-the-job Instruction, services
that assist individuals In securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs Is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;
5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligibta program

participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;
5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by

person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

'5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been (earned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
.independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. f^ental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations 8tX)ut the
use and management of medications: and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

■  5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing Immediate support and Intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assBSsment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpalienl drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described In 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits,
Utility deposits must be one-lime, paid to utility companies:

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described In 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section is being directly dellvere'9' by the recipient or subrecipient.'ellglble
costs for those services are described In 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AlpS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless Individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provlded lo a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 576,7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be: .

5.4.3.1. Shortterm. up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of '
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent Is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, In relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,'
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
end maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing funds
only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size In which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordlr>ation of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9:2. Sponsor-based rental assistance Is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside In housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, M'here the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance If they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which Is teiminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination.. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to. necessary .expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs aliocabie to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
Include the foiiowing:
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5.5.V2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those'budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing Inleragency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements:

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against slated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
In sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above. Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs Incurred for official business In carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Conlractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organizdtion(s}, or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space, in addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for indrvldual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUO-deterrhined fair martlet rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas. and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are o^raling costs, except for supporlive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from,
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may t>e used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be .given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid frorh money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that U already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be In compliance with all Stale and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the Jurisdiction In which the housing is located regarding (he
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-vreekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Manaooment System

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for. grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed In direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
' 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVlSinMS

Contractors Oblfgalions: The Contractor covenahls end agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

1. Complianco with Federal end State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals suc^ eliQibilily determination shall be made in accordance with appGcable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and IMonner of Ootormlnotion: Eligibility determinations shall bo made on forms provided by
the Dopartmont for that purpose and shell be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all appBcants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applican! shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or KIcKbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behatf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contrect and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Rotroactlvo Payments: Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and r>o payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the.
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to, purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at e
rale which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other thlr^ party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Oepartmeni shall determine that the Contraclor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rales charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third parly funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegoiiate the rates for paymisni hereunder. In which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future paymer^l to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs: '
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by (he Department to (he Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligiUe for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specifted above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following reco^s during the Contract Pedod:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents end other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, withoul limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions arid orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of

'  in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

6.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the'ContracI Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipienl). records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, (he
Contractor shall retain medical records on each palient/redpient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is racommended.that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
OfTtca of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' end (he provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as '
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contract and (he period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obiigations of the Corilracl. it Is
understood and agreed by (he Contractor that the Contractor shall be held iiat>le for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exceplion has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Corifldontlallty of Records: All information, reports, end records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be conHdential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to slate laws and the regulations of
the DeparUnent regarding the use end disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to '
public officials requiring such information in connection v4th (heir official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the adminislraiion of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the adminislraiion of the Department or the Contractor's respqnslbilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefoliowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written Interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-alidwable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to

.  justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Repbrt: A final report shad be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives staled in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Complotlon of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price'iimitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder- (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include Ihefonowing
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) wzs rmanced under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human' Services, with funds provided In part
by the Stale of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Departmeni of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership; All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have pnor approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwilhoul
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
stale, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Offrcer or officers
pursuant to (avvs which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operalion of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performartce of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at ail times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with alt rules, orders, regulalions. and requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance wilh local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employmont Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for CIval Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500.(X)0 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will meinlain a current 6E0P on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. cerljfyir^ that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
svith fewe'r'than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying ii is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR (o claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdoj/aboot/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. (.Imltod English Proficiency (LEP): Ais clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nafionalorigin
dlscflmination Includes discrlmiriaticn on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with, the Omnibus Crimo Control and Sdfe Sueets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblowor Protections; The
foliovnng shaO apply to ail contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Thre^old as defined In46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee whistueblower Rights and Requirement To inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Coniractoremployee whistleblower protections estebtishedat
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Coniractof shaB infonn Its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation..

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified ecquisltion threshold.

19. Subcontractors; OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
funclion(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subconlraclor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
wilh those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities andreporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation w1l} be managed if the subcontractor's
performance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an or>9oing basis

Exhlbll C - Sp«ci0l Provisions Coniroctor inlUab
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19.4. Provide to DMHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated funclionsand
.  responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for Improverhent are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definltiona;

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct end indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with slate and federal taws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services arxl/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. . FEDERALISTATE LAW; Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may t>e amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this,
' Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds aveitable for these services.

E)4)IUi C - special Provisions Cont/octor InlUals
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P'37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Aoreement. is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to (he contrary, ell obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, ihe continuance of'payments, in whole or In part.'
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
mt^lfies the appropriation or evailablilty of funding for iNs Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State sliall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modirication. The State shall not be required to transfer fur>ds from any other source or
-account into the Accouni($) identified in block 1.6 pf the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended bv adding the followinQ lanQuaoe:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stale. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice thait the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 in the event of early tenminalion. the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop end submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet (hose needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shell promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limiled to. any Information or
data requested by the Stale related to the termination of the Agreement end Transition Plan
and shell provide ongoing communication end revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that sen/ices under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted deiivery'of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying ctients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above. .

2. Renewal

2.1. The. Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
patties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

mD.- RAvisJons/ExcepUons lo Standard Conuscl Lsr>eu80« Contractor IniUala.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free .Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, SubtiUe 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seg.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirication;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS •

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of. 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require cedificaiion by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub^r^tees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in ea^ federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the cerlification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee ceillfies that it will or will continue to provide a dnjg-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions (hat will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees fordrug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee, to t>e engaged in the performar^ce of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, Including position title, lo every grant
cfTicer on whose grant activity the convicted ernployee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExhlM 0 - CenmcAton regarding Drug Free Verxlor InUiata
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calandar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who b so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, end 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specinc grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not idenlined here.

July 16. 2019
Dale

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Name Maureen Beauregard
President

ExntbU 0 - CaniflcsUon regsrding Drug Free Vendor inlllals
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying. ar>d
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Conlractor's represenlalive. as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foiiowlng Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Programs'(indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medtcaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under THle VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knosvledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contracl, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of ar)y agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or en employee of a Member.of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (end by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to "
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall reguire that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and discloso accordingly!

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certincation is a prerequisite for making or enlerir>g into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be sub/ed to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more lhan $100 000 for
each Buch failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH. Inc.

®  Namb: Maureen Beauregard ^
Title; President

ExNbA E - Cdrtiflcatlon RegartSng Lobbytno Vendor Inlitsli

Pepelofl Pete 16. 2019



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DDE5F63-5F83^1E5-BB9A-FEC0FB24FF2F

DocuSign Envelope ID: 23A481CB-E&8E-47EO-9804-296279C6DE5E

Now Hampshire Oepartmont of Heatth and Human Sorvlcos
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identrfied In Section V3 of the General Provisions agrees to compty with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 ar>d 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Detjarmenl.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identined In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certiftcation:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By Signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an

' explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Qepartmenl of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certlficalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certifotion In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHMS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary partidpant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certifjcation was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred,* 'suspended.' 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction.* 'participant.' 'person." 'primary covered transaction.* 'principal.* 'proposal.* and
'voluntarily excluded.' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. Sao the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered tran'sactipn tie entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that H will indude the
clause titled 'Certrficallon Regarding Debanment. Suspension. Ineliglbility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
(ransdctions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospectiva participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless H knows thai the certlficalion Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method artd frequency by which it determines Ihe eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, bul is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be constnjed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

EtfiUyi F - Ccrtlflcolton RogafcJIng OebArniertt. Suspension Vendor Inlllels J
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informalion ol a participant is riot required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a. prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIf^RY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certines to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for dobarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

8 civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, ahempllrvg to obtain, or performing e public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust'
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsincation or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3.. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) writh commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within e three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the. prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective iovrer tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Pert 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge end belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participatldn In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineltgibilily. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Tronsactipns,' svithoul modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

July 16. 2019

Date

President

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, IrK.

frxnu/ UfA
Name:/Maureen Beauregaro ^
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMiNATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ceniHcation;

Vendor will comply, eruf will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from dtscriminaling. either In employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, end sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employmeni Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b}) which adopts by
refereiKe. the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal fui^ing under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the-delivery of services or
benefits, on (he basis of race, color, religion, nationei origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employmeni Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 20(X)d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or banefrts, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination end ensures equal opportunity (or persons wHh disabilities in employmeni. Stete end local
government services, public accommodations, comthercial facilities, and transportation;

• (he Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1663,1685-86). which pmhiblts
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basb of age in programs or activities receiving Federal nnancial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13SS9. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for

. Enhancement of Conlrad Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.
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Iri Ihe evenl a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the .Department of Health and Human Services, arid
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees lo comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH. Inc.

July 16, 2019 (yXuuU
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regulady for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpetient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day ar>d/or the imposition of an admlnistrsllve compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing end submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: FIT/NH'NH, Inc.

2Q19
Date

Title; President
Namf. Maureen Beauregard '
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business •
Associate' shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity"
shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire. Oepartmeni of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section-160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Deslonated Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoreoatton' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. . .

f. 'Health Care ODerations* shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HiTECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TilleXlll, Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160.162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual'In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a persona) representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

K. 'Protected Health Information', shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. ^ ̂
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I. 'Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designiee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health inforrhatlon unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. ■ Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the sen/ices outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit'
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and

-  to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busings
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notines the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obllaatlona and Activities of Business Aasoclate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured

'protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered EnUty.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information Involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-Identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
t  I

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions arid conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 Exhlbil I Vendor InKUU (B6_
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

•I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Informatton related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such inforrnalion as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obllgalions
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back:up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business^ ̂
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQatlons of Covered Entitv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CPR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CPR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. .

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either Immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate'to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
vioiation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and *
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownersliip rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or aeated on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security
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Seofeaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sun/lval. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

Name of the Vendor

Departmenl of Health and Human Services

ThfiState

Signature of Authoriz^KepreseriJative. 'slgi^afure of Authorized Repre^^entative

Maureen Beauregard

signature or AutnorizM^epreserifative-

Cjil
N^e of Authorized Representative iRepresentative Name of Authorized Representative

President
Title of Aulhorized Representative

Date

]
Title of Authorized Representative

July 16. 2019

Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDtNG ACCOUNTABiUTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFF ATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires.prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requlrerhents. as of the dale of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation lnfonTtation),.the
Department of Heanh and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following infonnallon for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. hJAtCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is noi already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required .data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170.(Repoi1lng Subaward and Executive CDmpensation information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparertcy Act.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

July 16. 2019

Dale NamdMaureen Beauregard
President

ExNbll J - CertiRcaUon RegardlAQ tho Federal Fundlns Vor>dor Initials.
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FORMA

As the Vendor identiried In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify (hat the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. Tl^ DUNS number for your entity is; 825360399

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative egreements?

NO YES

If (he answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If (he answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does (he public have eccess (o information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under sectipn 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(d). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If (he answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensaied officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name;

Name:

Name;

Name;

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

ctM>«iS'i lorts
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure.
, unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident', shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
,  Incident' in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information" or 'Confidential Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

• Conffdential information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH ■ created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Heatth and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed In the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End .User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware.-or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last update 10/09/18 EiNbltK ConiracUv Inaisis
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DHHS Information Security Requirerhents

mall, ell of wtiich may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open V\/lreless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI PFI
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "Pi") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying infonmallon which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C F R §
160.103. •

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R; Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by © standards-developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A.- Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose,- maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor.
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In. violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End'
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert Knowledgeable in cyber security and thai said
application's encryption capabiliiies ensure secure transmission'via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certiried ground
. mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. the Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and' will
obtain written certification for any State of New Harhpshire data destroyed by the
Contractof.or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing Slate of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanillzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and wll provide written certirrcalion to the Department
upon request. The written certification, will include a!) details neciassary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of. this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic ConHdential Data
by rneans of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
conndential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and - access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department conridentlal Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting (he services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. -If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate.pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement

.  (BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey vrlll be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor chartges.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Infonriation Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
preveni future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs end
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
prlvficy and .security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintein the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope thai Is not less
than the level and scope of reguirements applicable to federal agencies. Iricluding.
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to •
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology,
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doil/vetyJor/index.him
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's • Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This Includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or, suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New ,
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above.
Implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limil disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individuatly
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and iBchnologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours, (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit. a1 rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not t>e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentialis used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including, the privacy and security requirements provided In herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. ,

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security IrKidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling ar»d Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable informalion Is involved in IrKidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so, identify appropriate
Breach notification' methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents arxj/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs,nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationS0CurityOffice@dhhs.nh.Qov
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